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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report '
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees present their annugl report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025, The annual repert serves the purposes of both a Trustees'

report, and o directors’ report and strategic report under company low.

The Potteries Educational Trust, gaing forward referred to as 'the Trust’ operates four academies in Stoke-on-Trent and
Staffordshire. These ore Biddulph High School, City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form College, Moorside High School and
werrington Primary School serving learners from 3 to 19, its academies have a combined student capacity of 4270
students and had a roll of 3.853 in the college and school census returns in October 2025, The sixth form college also
provides o foundation degree prograrmme for around a further 63 students from the University of Staffordshire.

Structure, governonce and management

a. Constitution

The Trust is a charitable company lmited by guarantee ond an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of assaciation are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees of the TFrust
are also the directors of the charitoble company for the purposes of company low. The charitable company is known as

the Potteries Educational Trust .

Details of the Trustees wha served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, ar within ane yeor after they cease to be o member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liobilities cantracted before they ceosed to be a member,

c. Trustees’ indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Trust's expense to cover the liability of the Trustees which
by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attoch to them in respect of negligence, default or breach of duty of which
they may be guilty in relation to the Trust, provided that any such insurance shall not extend 1o any deim arising from
any act or omission which the trustees knew to be a breach of trust or breach of duty or not, and provided aiso that any
such Insurance shall not extend to the costs of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the

trustees in their capacity as Directors of the academy trust,

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Eligibility to act as a Trustee of the Trust is within the Constitutional Framewark ond Clauses 45 - 80 of the Articles of

Association.

Up to eight Trustees are appeinted by the Members and other Trustees are co-opted by the Trust Board. The Trust
Board has Trustees available that can convene when there is a requirement to ottract, recrut and appoint new trustees
with @ range of skills and backgreund to provide the Trust with the best possible advice and support. Elected porents,

staff or students are appointed to serve the Local Governing Bodies.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and monagement {continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The mgjority of training and induction provided for each new Trustee will be based on a core programme and induction
pack supplemented by additional content depending on their existing skills ond experience and where necessary will
provide training on charity, educational, lega! and financial matters. In-house training with specialist staff is provided
prior to trustee meetings. Strotegic development days are hefd to updote trustees and governors on latest
developments in the sector and the possible impact on the Trust policies and priorities. Skills audits are undertaken to
ideritify gaps and technigues implemented to review effective governance.

f. Organisational structure

The Trustees ore responsible for setting general policy. adopting a three-year annual strategic plan and budget which is
reviewed annually, monitoring performance and appointment of Senior Postholders. The Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Operating Officer, the Executive Headteacher/Headteacher/Principal, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Governance Professional to the Trust Board are deemed to be Senior Pastholders for the purposes of pay decisions by
the Trust Remuneration Committee.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer. Decision making is determined through the Trust Scheme of
Delegation. The Trust's Executive Leadership Team provides strategic leadership and the consideration of trust wide
policies and curriculum delivery ocross the Trust. The Executive Leadership Teom comprises the Chief Executive Officer,
the Executive Headteccher/Headteacher/Principal/Head of Academy, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer,
Director of Human Resources and the Governance Professional.

Each academy across the Trust has its own Senior Monagement Team (SMT) and Middle Maonagement Teom os
appropriate for the needs of the establishment. Eoch SMT control their own academy within the Trust at a leadership
level, adhering to the scheme of delegation, implementing poiicies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to
them. As a group they are responsible for the guthorisation of spending within approved budgets ond the appointment

of staff,

Middle Manogers consisting of curriculum and support managers, in oddition to the SMT, have delegated responsibilities
and encourage decision making at all levels. This group alss reviews Risk Management within the organisation.

g. Arrangements for setting poy and remuneration of key management personnel

Trustees make decistons on poy levels for senior postholders upon the recommendction of the Remunerction
Commitiee. These are based on national and sector benchmarks as well as performance of individuals. Levels of pay
for other senfor leaders are also based on the same criteria. Pay for Executive Headteacher, Headteacher, Principal and
governonce & leadership of the academy is considered by the Remuneration Committee on the recommendation of the
Chief Executive Officer. Pay decislons for other senior leaders are made by the Principal or Meadteacher through the

performance mancgement processes.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guaranteg)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continuved)

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were refevant union officials during the year 5
Full-time eguivalent employee number 5
Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time Number of
employees
0% 3
1%-50% 2
51%-99% -
100% .
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £
Total cost of facility time 960
21,136,334

Total pay bill

Percentage of total pay bill spent on fachity time - %

Paid trade union octivities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours
i. Related parties ond other connected charities and organisations

The Potteries Educational Trust works in partnership with local schoofs ond colleges and in particular SASCAL, a
headteachers group within the City of Stoke-on-Trent. The Trust is active in providing system leadership support to
specific schools ocross Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire on request and forms valuable partnerships with these schools
and any associated multl ocodemy trusts, Active partnerships with other Trusts provide valuabie opportunities for

shoring best practice,

The Potteries Educational Trust recognises the importance of relationships with ll of these bodies as well as a range of
staokeholders and engages with them on a regulor basis.

j. Engagement with employees {including disabled persons)

The Trust keeps its employees informed regarding matters affecting them through the PET joint development doys,
staff briefings, weekly bulietins, e-mails and departmental meetings. with regards to disabled individuals under the
empioyment of the Trust, the trust has an Equal Opportunities Policy that it adheres to.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guorantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The Trust works with both internal and external stakeholders in accordance with the “Seven Principals of Public Life”,
these being: Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, Henesty and Leadership. The Trust relies on
extarnal suppliers for the provision of key services and these suppliers are treated on the same basis to establish and

maintain @ geod working relationship.

The Trust's procurement palicy is dealt with In gccordance with the provision of its Financial Framework, which sets out
the correct process to be followed and the relevant financial delegations applying ocross all trust academies. The Trust
aims to achieve best value for money ond the best price possible from oll suppliers given that a large proportion will be
paid with public funds. The Trust is required to maintain the integrity of those funds whilst ensuring that a foir process is

published and followed.

Communicating with students and parents/carers has been established through the use of letters, texts, e mail, sociol
media and management information systems including CEDAR, Dojo, Arbor and ParentPay
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and agims

Qur focus is to provide the very best education for every child and young person within the Trust, offering a high
quaiity, broad, academic education for the children and young people of Sioke-on-Trent, North Staffordshire ond
beyond. Working with like-minded partners, the Potteries Educational Trust centres on the development of the very
best practice In teaching, learning and assessment. We will provide teaching and learning in @ nurturing, supportive
environment with a broad range of opportunities and extra-curricular activities aveilable for all within the Trust.

Potteries Educational Trust is 6 3 - 19 developmental MAT, caring not corporate. Each one of our academies, like our
learners, is different, equat and inclusive. The PET has 450 talented staff and serves 4,000 learners across Stoke-on-
Trent and Staffordshire. Our learners progress to high quality, highly skiled jobs and help to shape our region and our

country’s future,

Each academy has its own Local Governing Body so thot decisions are made specific to the individual needs of each
academy. Each academy has its own individual charecter and uniqueness. 1t is important for our Trust to celebrate our
diversity whilst working to our common values and principles,

we offer a vast range of opportunities through the curriculum and extra curriculum activities to develop our young
people for fife experiences and promote high aspirations. The Trust has extensive links with reglonal and national
businesses and universities. We provide wide ranging continuous professional development opportunities for ali staff.

we are proud of being a Trust that successfully promotes the highest of aspirations in all our learners as evidenced by
the multiple opportunities available to meet leading professionals and academics, explore their vocation, experience
educational visits across the globe and apply successfully for the most competitive of destinations.

The PET Way:

e Learner-Centred: Putting children and young people ot the heart of oll decisions

Collaboration and Growth: Fostering a staff learning culture, seeking opportunities to learn and grow together and
share best practice within and outside of the Trust (collaboration, research, evidence)

Leadership Commitment: Ail leaders understand their responsibilities to Potteries Educational Trust and their
acodemny, and are committed to and promote our shared vision and values

Mastery Learning: Ensuring every learner has the opportunity to achieve deep uvnderstanding and unlock their full

potential
what we value:

« Innovotion - to embrace creativity in all its forms

Respect - to respect and celebrate the uniqueness of each of our academies and their communities
¢ Community - To be the heartbeat of our communities

»  Aspiration - to Inspire our learners to follow their dreams

e Integrity - to be honest, ethical and trustworthy

s  Exceilence - to strive for excellence in all that we do
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continved)

Cur Strategic Plan for 2025 - 2030 includes:

Educationat Provider of Choice
« Mastery Learning: All learners goin higher levels skills ond o deep understanding of what they have learned
« Digital Learners: Our lecrners gain skills in digital learning, Al and innovative technologies which enhances their

learning.

Employer of Cheice
e Everyone feels valued and contributes to Trust success: Professional development and the work of staff contributes

to our shared success with welibeing for all
» Shared Services: We bulld capacity to deliver systermn ieadership and reduce unnecessary workload for our staff

Partner of Choice
» Portnerships: Partners raise student aspirations ond provide clear pathways for first chalce careers
s Partners in Excellence: Portnerships with parents / corers / educationgl providers improve outcomes for young

peaple in our Trust and our region

we shape young people to transform the future.

b. Financial Objectives

The Trust sets annual financiol objectives In order to continue to maintain high standards ¢of education ond support for
learners by the efficient use of funding allocated to the Trust's academies.

In addition, the Trust intends to remain financialiy sound so as to:

+ Maintain and further develop the very highest levels of teaching and learning for all its students. We seek to be the
centre for academic excelfence in the region and to work to support colleagues in feeder schoals in developing
thelr practice alse - working in ¢ collegiate way that acknowledges we can learn os much from them gas they from
us and for the betterment of all young pecple’s lives in the area.

«  Protect itself from unforeseen adverse changes in enrolments and learner activity fevels. It should be noted that
although the concept of the current funding methodology reduces the risk of in yeor reconciliation any uader
achievernent of targets in one year could lead to rebasing of allocations and reduced funding in future years.

»  Provide a safe, pleasant and secure working environment for alf learners ond staff.

* Generote sufficient income to enable maintencance and improverment of its accommedation and eguipment.

+ Develop staff to their full potenticl to enable them to motivote learners to achieve their gools.

The Trust wishes to maintgin the confidence of funders, suppliers, bankers and auditors whilst also raising the
awareness of trust stoff of the financiol environment under which it operates.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continued)
¢. Public benefit

The Potteries Educational Trust is an exernpt charlty under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and Is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Education. The Directors, who are Trustees of the charitable company are disclosed on page 1.

In setting ond reviewing the Trust's objectives, the frustees had due regard for the Charity Commission’s guidance on
public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education. The guidance sets
out the reguirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must demonstrote, explicitly, that their

aims are for the public benefit.

in delivering its mission, the Trust provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement of

education:

s  High quolity teaching and learning

« Widening participation and tackling social exclusion
+  Excellent employment record for learners

+  Strong learner support systems

s Links with employers, industry and commerce.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Key Stage 8 Achievement

As a result of their hard work and excelfent teaching at the City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form Coltege and Biddulph High
School, the Trust students’ progress to a wide range of higher education courses and apprenticeships including:

= Medicine, Dentistry and Veterinary

»  Economics ond Finonce

» Mathematics, Engineering and Computing
»  Medical Engineering

»  Oxford, Coambridge,
« Universities of Stoffordshire, Keele, Sheffield, Derby, Manchester, Cardiff, Bristol, Loughborough, York, Chester,

Piymouth, Imperial Cellege London, University of Arts London and many more
»  Apprenticeships or Degree Apprenticeships with Rolls Royce, University Hospital North Midlands Trust, Cyberkiln,
Thampsen Wright Chartered Accountants, Promiteck, Volvo, FGP Knutsford and Goodwin Engineering,

PET students have achieved some of the highest results nationally in Computer Science, Physics, Mathematics, Polltics,
Business Studies, History, Health and Social Care, Arabic. T Level Educotion and Early Years, Health Sclences, Finance
and creative courses like Games Design, Dance and Music. T Level Education reflects the Trust's strong focus on skills

and strong partnerships.

Outcornes in A Level courses

Overall, Trust results show that while attoinment increased in both academies with attainment in High Grades 42% at
Biclduiph High School and 47% ot City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form College. A - £ Pass rates are above or close to
national ot City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form Colflege and Bidduiph High School.

Outcomes in Vocationol and Technical courses

Results for High Grades in Vocational and Technical courses are a strength across the trust with SFC High Grades of
80% for their Diplorma and Certificate courses (including extended) which is a 17% increase from the previous year and
BHS achieving 54% High Grades an 18% increose from the previous year. This is an improved picture overall and pass
grades for vocational courses ot both academies were above national results,

Technical education continues 1o be outstanding ot PET as it reflects our focus on skills ond strong partnerships with a
wide range of employers like University Hospital North Midlands Trust, Staffordshire Highways Laboratory, Cyberkils,
Siemens and the Home Office. T Level courses at SFC achieved 85.7% High Grades and 98.2% pass rates which is well

above national everages.

GCSE resit data continues to be a strength of our Trust with GCSE resits in Moths above national avercge at both
Biddulph High School and City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Farm Coliege. GCSE resits in Engfish at City of Stoke-on-Trent
Sixth Form College were above national average for the fourth year in o row, well above the focal GCSE English and

Maths outcomes.
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Compony Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued}
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)
Keuy Stage 4 Achievement

Learners ot Biddulph High School, Moorside High School and the City of City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form College have
once ogain achieved excellent exomination results this year in GCSE and Level 2 Vocational courses.  The hard work
and dedication of students and staff have led to exceptional results across the board, This includes an Increase in
learners achieving grades 9 - 7 in English end Maths and 100% of students achieving the qudiifications to enable them to

attend their chosen destinations.

Potteries Educational Trust learners have achieved top resuits in German, English, Science, GCSE PE, Computer Science,
Graphics, History, Geography, Music and Business Studies.

Suvccesses include

English and Maths Success: 10% students in English and Maths achieved grades 9 - 7 at Bidduiph High School and 20%
of Moorside High School achieving 9 - 7 grades In English, Maths and English results at 9 - 4 above or in line with
national ot both academies. 45 grade 9s were achieved at Biddulph High School. Wider curriculum success includes
100% Chemistry and Biofogy at grades 9 - 4 and 100% Further Maths achieving grade 9 ot Biddulph High School, and
100% grades 9 - 5 for Business, 77% grades 9 - 5 for Music with 33% achieving grade 9 - 7 In Music and 87% achieved
grade 9 - 5 In Physics at Mocrside High Scheol. 100% of students taking vocational courses at Moorside High Schoot

passed.

Key Stage 2 Achievement

The progress of Werrington Primary School's Year 6 learners was strong with a significant majority making expected or
better than expected progress. The expected Reading Writing Moths 67% was improved from the previous year and
above nationa! average but higher Reading Writing Maths at 5% is slightly better than 2024 (4%) but below national
average. Writing and spelling punctuation and gremmar continue ta be above or In line with national outcomes for the
fourth year in a row. Higher Reading (32%) is above 2024 although slight!y below national average.

Key Stage 1 and EYFS Achievement

Results at Werrington Primary $choel show that phonics hos sustained improvements in cutcomes whilst at early yeors
foundation stoge outcomes for reception classes reflected the complex nature of the cohort. Learners achieving good
level of development (GLD} increased to 71% (59% in 2024). Nursery outcomes are in line with Staffordshire averages.

The Trust are pleased with on overall good set of outcomes for our learners, including attendonce above national
expectations in every one of our academies, reflecting our commitment to ensuring our children and young people

attend and enjoy school,
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report {(continued)
Achievements and performonce (continued)
a. Key performance indicators

The Trust continues to monitor the performance of its academies through regular monitoring by the CEC and Senior
Monogement Teams within each academy. Speciolist resources are targeted to specific areas as necessary.

The Trust operates in line with the requirements of its Funding Agreement with the Department for Education (BfE) ond
manages its reserves in line with the Trust's financial policies.

All Potteries Educctional Trust academies gre rated Ofsted Good.

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enguiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preporing the finoncial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern

basis can be found in the accounting policies.
¢. Promoting the success of the company

The Trust provides systems, structures and external networks to support the work in the Trust's acodemies to enable
them to prioritise their time on teaching, learning strategies and cutcomes for their schools. The Trust believe that this
vilows academy leadership ond tocal committees to focus on the needs of the children and young people in their

ccodemies within a supportive framework.

The Trust works hard to ensure that each academy environment is fit for purpose and that envirenmental impact is
considered when decisions are made regarding trust infrastructure. Estates projects cver the last few years at the
Trust's acadernies have used both local and regional workforces ond ecolsgicol standards have been observed.

The professional conduct of our trustees, governers, staff and visitors is of the upmaost importance to the Trust All are
expected to ubide by refevant codes of conduct and trust policies.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report (continued)
Financial review

The Trust receives the majority of its funding from the Department for Educations (DfE), formerly, Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grant paid on a monthly basis. The grant received during the period is
shown as ‘Restricted Funds’ in the Statement of Financiat Activities.

The Trust also benefits from a Devolved Formula Capital Grant which is used for maintenance projects and investment

in resources.

The Trust has fixed gssets of £53.084,797, cash of £1,529.636 and short-term investment balances of £2,141,045, The
Trust has occumulated reserves and cash balances in order to create a contingency fund for future capital

development.

Restricted funds total £663.309 and movements during the year are shown in note 21 to the financial statements.

The Trust has reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source, largely from recurrent

grants.

a. Reserves policy

The Board of Trustees recognise the imgportance of reserves In the financial stability of eny organisation and ensures
there are adequate reserves to support the Trusts’ core activities. This review encompasses the nature of the income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of the reserves,

The Trust aims to continue to accumulate reserves and cash balances to enable future caopital developments and
cushion the effects of any further decreases in real terms funding levels. Discussions are also taking place with partner
orgonisations to develop further sports facilities for the City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form College to replace those at
Fenton Manor following either the end of the current period or early termination outside of the contral of the Trust.

Any schoals joining the Trust will adhere to the Trust's reserves policy which states that reserves will not be pogled. The
Board of Trustees and each academy’s Local Governing Body will decide on how their respective academy reserves will
be spent in consultation from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Upon review of the Trust reserves position at 31 August 2025, the current balance of restricted general funds (excluding
pensions and enhanced pension reserves) is £827,079 plus ¢ £1,503,699 balance on unrestricted reserves funds.

The reserves currently held are slightly below the Trust's target which is contained within the Reserves Policy. For
confirmation this Is £1,905,000 which broadiy represents 6.9% of total annual funding. The Trust cortinues to set out to
steadily increase reserves each year, with capital investment projects targeted across the Trust for use of these funds

when necessary and suitable funds permit,
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)}

Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

b. Investment policy

Treasury monagement is the management of the Trust's cash flows, banking and money morket transacticns; the
effective control of the risks associated with these activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with
the associated risks. The Trust has a seporate investment policy in place.

During the period there wos no short-term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes and the Trust has no bank loans.
Any borrowing requires the authorisation of the Trustees ond must comply with the requirements of the Funding
Agreement agreed with the DfE.

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust has undertaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of internal contral, including
financial, operational and risk manogement which is designed to protect the Trust's assets and reputction.

Based on the strategic plan and academy improvement plans, Executive Leadership Team and Senior Leadership
Teams ond undertake regular comprehensive reviews of the risks to which the Trust is exposed. They identify systems
and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact on the Trust. The
internal controfs are then implemented and the subsequent year's cppraisal will review their effectiveness and progress
against risk mitigation actions. In addition to annual reviews, the Executive Leadership Team and Senior Leadership
Teams also consider any risks which may arise as ¢ result of o new area of work being underioken by the Trust.

A detqited risk register is maintained at both Trust and academy level which s reviewed ot least termiy by the Audit and
Risk Committee and mare frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those
risks occurring, thelr potentiol impoct on the Trust and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks
are prioritised using o consistent scoring system. This is supported by a risk management troining proegramme to raise

owareness of risk throughout the Trust.

Key risks for each ocademy are identifled ot o strategic analysis review meeting in September and reviewed in March,
and cre reported and reviewed together with the impact of mitigations at Local Governing Body meetings.

Outlined below is o description of the principal risk factors that could offect the Trust although not all of the factars are
within the Trust's control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely offect the Trust.

d. Government Funding
The Trust has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the education sector funding bodies.

There con be no assurance that government palicy or practice will remain the same or that public funding wili continue
at the same levels or on the same terms. Demogrophic frends aisc have a significant impact on recurrent funding.

Fundraising

The Trust does not use external fundraisers. Fundraising is monitored ot a local level by individual academies
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guaranteg)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Streamiined energy and corbon reporting

The Trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption for the year are os follows:

2025 2024

Energy consurmption used Lo seiculote emissions (Kwhi 3,506,797 2309555
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):
Gas 1,866,868 1854819
Electriciiy 1,615,252 1,659,042
Yrensgort fuel 24,677 35,09
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of COZ equivalent):
Gas consumption 341 555
Ownied ransport 2 8
Total scope 1

243 £44
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased elactricity
Scope % emisslons {in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Business travel in employes-owned o rental vehicles 4 bl
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent): £33 £RA
intensity ratio:

048 QI8

Tennes of COZ equivalent per pupil

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

we have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have clso used the GHG Reporting
Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2025 UK Government’s Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity Measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total grass emissions in metric tonnes COZe per pupil (based on the autumn
census), the recommended rotio for the sector.

Measyres taken 1o imarove energy efficiency
we have smart meters in place at our academy sites and hove also increased the amount of video conferencing

technology now in use ccross the Trust, in order 1o reduce the need for travel between sites and for travel to sites for

some governance meetings.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Plans for future periods

The Trust remains concerned that future austerity plans along with high inflation and high energy costs will continue to

impact negatively on the education sector.

The chollenges faced by the sector include:

» Developing the curriculum to meet the needs of learners with the introduction of linear courses and changes to

vocational qualifications
« Meeting the chailenge of continued restrictions in funding
s Increases in high inflationary employer payrcell costs
+  Maintaining the quality and experience for learners
* National chollenges with recruitrment and retention in certain subject areas
s Growth of the trust through continued collaboration with schools and acodemies in the best interests of learners

« Chonging demographics of children and young people

Rescurces

The Trust has resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic chiectives:
« Estabiished ang well-trgined stoff

s Excellent iICT infrastructure
e its reputation as an orgonisation that achleves excellent results, together with high quality learner support and

colfcboration
+ Excellent focilities and physical rescurces

Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Thera have been no significant or materiol events to report after the period end,
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Disclosure of information to quditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware;

there is no relevant oudit information of which the charitable company’s auditers are unaware, and
that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant cudit
information and to establish that the cuditors are aware of that information,

L ]

The Trusteeg' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was opproved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, 0N j} e ey by 202 < and signed on its beholf by

M Jones H McLachlan % %"lﬁ éO{/L

Chair Iu\ ’ m Accounting officer
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we haove overcll responsibility for ensuring that Potteries Educational Trust has an
effective ond appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manoge
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reascnoble and not
absolute assurance agoinst material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and token account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegoted the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring finoncial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety ond good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibiliies assigned to it in the funding agreement between Potteries
Educational Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible far reporting to the Board of
Trustees ony material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has farmally met 5 timeas during the year.

Attendance during the year ot meetings of the Boaord of Trustees was as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
M Jones, Chair 4 5
H McLachian, Chief Exacutive 5 5
C Freeman 5 5
P Gavin (resigned 31 August 2025) 5 5
M Johnstone 3 5
P Mangnall 3 5
C Mayer 3 5
J Smart 4 5
K Smith 4 5
K J Townshend (appointed & January 2025) 3 3
R Jones 5 5
K Spelman Miller 5 5
J C Gething (gppointed 6 July 2025) 0 0
S Quinn (appeinted 1 September 2025) 0 0

Conflicts of Interest

The Trust maintain a register of Interests which contains any business or pecuniory interests that trustees and leaders
have. These ore reviewed os least annuclly. A specific agenda item is included on each Trust Beard, Committee and LGB
meeting as a reminder for trustees and governars to declore any changes to the register of interests together with any
declaration of any conflict interest they muay hove in items on the meeting cgenda.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)
Gavernance Review

During the 2024/25 academic year the Board has undertcken an internal review of future skilis requirements in
readiness for succession plonning and transition arrangements to mitigate a risk of term of office end dotes which are
potenticily due to end ot a similar time. Externcl leadership and governance reviews were completed for City of Stoke-
on-Trent Sixth Form College and Werrington Primary School together with an External Review of the Trust Board in
Autumn Term 2024. Subsequent actions were Identified and developed Into action plans or Included in Academy

Imgrovement Plans as appropriate,

Each Board, Committee and Local Governing Body agenda includes an item for reflection of the effectiveness of

governance.

The Finance and Resources Committee is o committee of the main board of trustees. The Committee has met three
times during the ueor. Its purpose Is to assist the Board through regular monitoring of its financial performance,
approving capital projects and the monitoring of other key performance indicators.

During the 2024/25 finoncial year the Committee continued to monitor the progress and financial management of the
budget for the Trust, Variations to budget were evaluated closely foilowing a budget re-farecast at the start of the
Autumn Term 2024. Risks to budget positions were monitored closely to ensure impact of mitigations and effective use

of resources.
Pay awards for 2024 were gpproved for implementation.

The Executive Leader structure was reviewed and implemented. Leadership structure proposals for Biddulph High
Schoo! and Moorside High Schoo! were considered, agreed and implemented.

To provide capacity across the Trust a proposal to implement shared service areas and relevant consultation
implementation of shared service for Human Resources and Finance were ogreed with effect from 1 September 2025.

Estate condition improvements were evaluated, and approval granted for applications for Condition Improvement
Funding to be made with no match funding from academy reserves. CIF fundings applications were not successful for
our acodemies. Use of Trust reserves were approved to create a suite for the Principaiship of the College and
development of other space to accommodate the implementation of a trust wide shared service for Human Resources
and Finance. Utility contracts were reviewed and new controcts implemented.  Significant investment approved in IT
assets. Revised asset mandgement sysiem approved ond implemented.  Lockdown system approved and

implemented. Anti-virus renewal approved.
Lettings policy for specific academies reviewed and charges reviewed.

The STEM Learning Science Learning Partnership contract, Computing Hub and Digital School House contracts were
ended by the DfE. Itis acknowledged that this impacts on income for the Trust ond required a redundancy consultation.

A link governor from each academy Local Governing Body is invited to be in attendance at the Finance and Resources
committee to aid engagement of governance at the local level,
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance (continued)

Attendance during the yeor at Finonce and Resources Commitiee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
R Jones (Chair) 3 3
C Freemon 3 3
H McLachlan 3 3
J Smart 3 3

The Audit and Risk Committee is a committee of the main board of trustees. The Committee has met three times during
the year, Its purpase is to ensure statutory complionce and assist the Board in ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness
of control systems and procedures and in considering audit and other reports.

During the 2024/25 financial year the Committee continued to regularly review the risk register and impact of the
relevant mitigations and made recommendations as appropricte to the Trust Board, The committee continue t© monitar
and oversee complionce with statutory requirements. Reviews completed for the recommendation of systems related to
Risk Management, Asset Management and safety systems.

An external review of governonce was completed. The committee oversee the process for review of effective
governance on behalf of the Boord. Recommendations from the review and relevant succession planning strategies
implemented cnd continue to be monitored.

The Trust Whistle Blowing Policy ond the Trust Complaints Policy reviewed and Implemented.

Attendance during the year ot Audit and Risk Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of o possible
P mMagnall (Chair) 3 3
C Mayer 3 3
P Gavin (resigned 31 August 2025) 3 3
3 3

J Gething (Co-opted until 6 July 2025}

The Remuneration Committee is g committee of the main board of trustees. The Committee has met once during the
year, its purpose is to consider and advise on:

e the performance of the holders of senior posts as determined by the Board.

e the remuneration, other terms and conditions of the holders of senior posts as determined by the Board.
» the appraisal of the holders of serior posts as determined by the Board,

v the stoff development the helders of senior posts as determined by the Board,
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Compuny Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement {continued)

Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year at Remuneration Committee meetings was as follows:

Trusiee Meetings attended QOut of ¢ possible
C Freeman 1 1
P Gavin (resigned 31 August 2025) 1 1

1 [

M Jones (Chair)
Quality of Education Committee

The Quality of Education Committee s a committee of the main board af trustees. The Committee has met four times
during the year. #ts purpose Is to assist the board In the discharge of its strategic responsibilities for educationa
perfarmance and improvement, student progress and destinations and high expectations of alt learners.

Throughout the year the committee continue to monitor the Impact of teaching and learning strategies on the
achievement and progress of learners. A trust wide Teaching and Learning Policy was reviewed and implemented. A
review of provision for disadvantaged learners was commissioned, A trust wide attendance strategy and statement
was reviewed and implemented. Attendance and Behaviour data dashboards ceontinued to be received and monitored.

A link governor from each ccademy Local Governing Body Is invited to be in attendance at the Quality of Education
committee 10 ald engagement of governance at the local level and a connection to academy dota and trust wide

strategies.

Attendance during the year at Quality of Education Committee meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of @ possible
K Smith (Choir) 4 4
C Freeman 4 4
H MclLachicn 4 4
K Townsend {appointed é January 2025} 2 3
K Spelman Milier 4 4
3 4

M Johnstone
Locai Governing Body

Ecch Academy has a Local Governing Body which is o committee of the Trust Board. The constitution, membership ond
proceedings of the Local Governing Body Is determined by the Trust Board and through the Scheme of Delegation. As
part of the review of effective governance Local Governing Bodies requested to remove sub-committees and held o
LGB meeting once per half term, one meeting with a focus on the gudiity of education and other meeting in the
academic tarm with a focus on finance and resources. In line with the Scheme of Delegation, LGB has o focus on the
detailed scrutiny of data and reports, to hold executive leaders to account together with engagement of stakeholder
(learners, stoff and parents/carers) for the relevant academy. Following a further review of effective governance and
consultation with trustees and governors, to support the workioad of both governors and acedemy feaders Local
Governing Bodies will hold one LGB meeting per academic term together with an additional governance activity for

example quality assurance, link governor visits.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement {continued)

Governance (continued)

Following the successful introduction of a system for a link governor from each academy to be in attendance at the
Board Quality of Education Committes and the Finance ond Rescurces Committee, the link governor process will be
introduced for the Audit and Risk Commilttee. The impact of the introduction of LGB link governors at Board Committees
has been an increase in communication and understanding across all strands of governance which supports more
effective decision making, strotegic thinking and policy development.,

Review of vaiue for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good volue in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for meney refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and manogement, achieved in return for the taxpoyer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of

benchmarking dota where appropricate.
The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

e Atrust wide contracts database continues to be further developed and monitored with all Trust members to identify
joint procurement opportunities to ensure savings and best value is applied to all future contract purchasing across
the Trust.

» Sirong procurement support within estates copita! projects, and energy contract costs in order to maximise the

value for money for our investment
» Introduction of new sustems for asset and estate management

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal contro!l is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather thon to eliminate oll risk of failure
to achieve poiicies, aims and objectives. it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal controt Is based on on on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the ochievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihoad of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Potteries Educational Trust for the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up
to the dote of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, fingncial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that
there is o formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in
place for the yeor 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up te the date of approval of the annual report ond
financiol statements, This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement {continued)

The risk and contro! framework

The Trust's system of Internal financial control is based on o framework of requlor management information and
administrotive procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountebility. In

particular, It includes:
comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which

are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
regular reviews by the Finance ond Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of mgjor purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting torgets to measure flnoncial and other performance
. cleorly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
. identificotion and management of risks

The Board of Trustees hos decided te buy-in an internal audit service from Hardings Accountants.

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Hardings Accountants as internal auditor due to the cost-effective nature

of the services offered.
The internal auditor's role Includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on

the Trust's financial systems. Int particuler, the checks carried out In the current period included

¢ Expenditure
There were no material controi issues reported by the interncal auditor during the year,

On an annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the Audit and Risk committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Boord of Trustees’ financia! responsibilities. On an
annual basis the reviewer prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess yedr on year progress,
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(A Company Limited by Guarontee)}

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the reviewer;

. the school resource management self-assessment tool;

. the work of the executive menagers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development ond
maintenance of the internal controf framework.

. the work of the external ouditors;

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the Audit and Risk committee and o plan to address weaknesses ond ensure continuous improvement of the system

is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
that the acaderny trust has on cdeguate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on thelr behaolf by:

M Jones H McLachlan ///’ngz (// /ﬁm/

Chair of Trustees P\ ¥ Accounting Officer

Dote: |,
f’@cc‘ﬁmb’m eSS
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Potieries Educationat Trust, | confirm that | have had due regard to the fremework of
authorities governing regularity. propriety and compliance, including the trust's funding agreement with DIE, ond the
reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, inciuding responsibilities for estates safety and rmanagement. | have
also considered my responsibility to notify the ocodemy trust board of trustees and DfE of material Irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management.

| confirm thot 1, and the board of trustees ore able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the
academy trust, or material non-complicnce with the framework of authorities.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any
instances are identified ofter the date of this statement, these will be notified to the boord of trustees ana DfE.

P/}” 'fﬁé/ﬁfé’a/p,

H McLochlan
Accounting Officer

Date: T Deccmb o~ ,?—‘ﬂs-‘:
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Potteries Educotional Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees (who are aolse the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Acadernies Accounts Direction
published by the Deportment for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company low requires the Trustees to prepare finoncial stotements for each finonclal yeor. Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they glve a true and fair view of the
state of offairs of the charftable compuany ond of its incoming resources and application of rescurces, including its
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these finoncial statements, the Trustees are reguired to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether opplicoble UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material deportures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financiol statements on the going concern baosis unless it is ingppropriate to presume that the

chariteble company will continue in business,

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thot are sufficient to show and explain the
charitoble company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financicl position of the
charftable company and enable them to ensure that the finoncial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They ore also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charifuble compony and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring thet in its conduct and operction the charitable company opplies financial
and other controls, which conform with the reguirements both of propriety and of geod financiol management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial inforrnation included on
the charitoble company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdorn governing the preporation ond dissemination of

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

p

M Jones M * .-u;‘:'
Chair of Trustess

D0t83 i f Dz._"cc_-lrh bw._. ?__O?—MS‘
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Potteries Educational Trust

Opinion

we have audited the financio! stotements of Potteries Educational Trust (the ‘trust’) for the year ended 31 August 2025
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balonce Sheet, the Stoterment of Cash Flows and the related
notes, Including o summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generclly Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Stondard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard opplicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the

Department for Education.

In our opinion the financial staternents:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting Practice; ond

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SCRP 2019
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Stondards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK} and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statermnents section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our gudit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting
Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe thot the cudit evidence we have obtalned s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our apinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In ouditing the finoncial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preporation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matericl uncertainties reioting to events or
conditions that, Individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as @ gaing
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect te going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Potteries Educational Trust
(continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the informotion included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsitle for the other information contained within the Annual Report.
Our opinton on the financial statements does not cover the other information ond, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stoted in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read
the other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is matericlly inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtoined in the course of the cudit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such materio inconsistencies or apparent moterial misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is o materiol misstatement of this other infarmation, we are required to report that

fact.
we have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the qudit:

. the information given in the Trustees’' Report including the Strotegic Report for the finoncial year for which the
financial stotements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordence with opplicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report including the Strategic Report.

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

repeort to you if, in our opinion:

. adeguote accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our qudit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial stotements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received oll the information and explanations we require for our oudit.
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(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Independent Auditors’ Repart on the financiol statements to the Members of Potteries Educational Trust

{continued)

Responsibilities of trustees

As expiained mare fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the Trustees (who ore also the directors of the
Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give o true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enoble the preparation of fingncial statements that ore free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preporing the financlal stotements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue os g
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, motters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trusteas either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.
Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonoble assurance about whether the financiol stotements as a whole gre free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an Audltors’ Report that Includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guerantee that an oudit conducted in accardance with
1SAs (UK) will afways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including froud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and nion-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

the senlor statutory auditor ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropricte competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulatlions;

we identified the laws and reguiations opplicable to the Trust through discussions with directors and other
management, and from our commercial knowledge and experlence of the sector;

we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have ¢ direct material effect on the financiat
statements or the operations of the Trust, including the financial reporting legislation, Acadernies Act 2010,
Companies Act 2006, Academies Accounts Direction, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and
environmental and health and safety legislation;

we ossessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through meking enguiries of

management ond inspecting legal carrespondence; and
identified laws and requlations were communicated within the oudit teem regularly ond the teom remained alert to

instances of non-compliance throughout the audit
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the finencial stotements to the Members of Potteries Educational Trust
{continued)

We assessed the susceptibility of the Trust's finoncial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

« moking enguirles of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to froud, their knowledge of

actual, suspected and alleged froud;
« considering the internal controls in place to mitigote risks of fraud and non-compliance with lows and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

+ performed anaclytical procedures to identify ony unusuol or unexpected relationships;

+ tested journa! entries to identify unusual transactions;

» assessed whether judgements ond assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in Note 2
were indicative of potential bias; and

e investigated the raticncle behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregulorities ond non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

s agreeing financial statement disclasures to underlying supporting documentation;

o reoding the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» enquiring of management as to actucl ond potential itigation and claims; and

+ reviewing correspondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the Trust's legal advisors.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk thot we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstaternent in the financicl staterments or non-complionce with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financlol
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of nan-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, s froud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,

omission or misrepresentation.

A fyrther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the finoncial staterments is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website ot www frcorcuk/ouditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of aur Auditors’ Report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Potteries Educational Trust

(continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable Trust's members, os a body, in accordonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable Trust's members
those matters we are reguired to stote to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitied by low, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the choritable Trust and its members,
as a body, for our cudit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed.

e M
Dains Audit
Simon Hawkins (Senior Stotutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
Dadins Audit Limited
Statutory Auditor
Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Lane
Etruria
Stoke-on-Trent
ST15RQ

Date: “ Gg@ﬂm %}ZS'
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Potteries Educational Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Potteries Educational Trust
and the Secretary of State for Education

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 21 October 2025 and further to the requirements of the
Deportment for Education (DfE} as included in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about
whether enything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Potteries Educctionat Trust during the yecr 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been
applied to the purpeses identified by Parliament ond that the financial transactions do not canform to the authorities

which govern them.

This report is made solely to Potteries Educationat Trust and the Secretory of State for Education in accordance with the
terms of our engogement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Potteries Educational Trust
and the Secretary of State for Education those matters we are reguired to state in a report and for no other purpose, To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other thon Potteries
Fducational Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have

formed.

Respective responsibilities of Potteries Educational Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Potteries Educational Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretory of State for Education doted 26 March 2021 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed ond income recelved is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament
ond the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guldance and
are to obtain limited assuronce and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
extant Framewark and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we
report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out aur work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the yeor 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parlioment or that the financlol tronsactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

Approach

we conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DfE. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our

engogement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to abtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more fimited in scope than o reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
In a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test bosis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Trust's income and expenditure.
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Potteries Educotional Trust

(A Compoany Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Potteries Educational Trust
and the Secrefary of State for Education (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nathing has come to our attentlon which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliement and the financial transactions do not conform to the autherities which govern them.

Mﬁ;ﬁ Mb? W

Dains Audit Limited

Suite 2, Aibion Mouse
2 Etruria Office Village
Etruria

Forge Lane
Stoke-on-Trent
ST15RQ

oete: || ) mwﬁ 2075
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of financia! activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)

For the Yedr Ended 31 August 2025

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donatiens and capital
grants 3 - - (36,435) {36,435) 60,106
Cther troding activities 5 50,600 287,006 - 347,606 771,424
{nvestments 6 86,750 228,000 - 314,750 207,307
Choritable activities 403,90 26,562,213 - 26,966,114 26,215,739
Total income 541,251 27,082,219 (36,435) 27,592,035 27254576
Expenditure on:
Charitakle activities 7 401,262 25,980,351 1,536,971 27,918,584 28,052,681
Total expenditure 401,262 25,980,351 1,536,971 27,918,584 28.052.681
Net
income/{expenditure) 139,989 1,106,868 (1,573,406) (326,549) (798,105}
Transters between funds 21 {37,755) (318,025) %55,780 - -
Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/(losses) 102,234 788,843 (1,217,626) {326,549) (798,105)
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuariat gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 28 - 4,066,000 - 4,066,000 1,589,000
Pension surplus not
recognised 28 - {4,562,000) - {4,562,000) (1,620000)
Net movement in funds 102,234 292,843 (1,217.626) {822,549) (829,105)
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Ltimited by Guarantee)

Stotement of financial activities {incorporating income and expenditure account) (continuved)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds - classii funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Reconcillation of funds:
Totat funds brought
forword 1,401,465 370,466 54,404,123 56,176,054 57,005,159
Net movement in funds 102,234 292,843 (1,217,626) {822,549) {829.105)
Total funds carried
forward 1,503,699 663,309 55,186,497 55,353,505 56,176,054

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 39 to 75 form port of these financial statements.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 10647453

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2025

Fixed qssets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

nvestments

Cash ot bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Totol assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due ofter more than
one year

Provisions for liabilities

Net gssets excluding pension asset

Total net assets

Funds of the Trust

Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricted income funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

14

15
16
17
26

18

19
20

21
21

21
A

2025
£
53,084,797
53,084,797
27,007
807,683
2,141,045
1,529,636
4,505,371
(1,916,816)
2,588,555
55,673,352
{156,077)
(163,770)
55,353,505
55,353,505
53,186,497
663,309
53,849,806
1,503,699
55,353,505

2024
£
54,318,876
54,318,876
36,824
990,691
2,070,390
1,294,228
4,392,133
(2180,01)
2,212,122
56,530,998
(192,839)
(162,105)
56,176,054
56,176,054
54,404,123
370,466
54,774,589
1401465
56,176,054
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guaraontee)
Registered number: 10647453

Balance Sheet {continued)
As at 31 August 2025

The financial statements on pages 34 to 75 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on
their behalf, by:

M Jones /
Chair of Trustees (\_/\ ¢ &i"jy
Date:

W Decemb o~ 2e2%

The notes on pages 39 to 75 form part of these financial statements.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing octivities

Cash flows from financing octivities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash ond cosh equivalents ot the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the year

The notes on pages 39 to 75 form paort of these financial statements

Note

23

25

24

26,27

2025 2024

£ £
438,982 (658,223)
(165,800) (618,637)
(37.774) 108,965

235,408 (1167,895)
1,294,228 2462123
1,529,636 1,294,228

Page 38



Potteries Educationai Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)}

Notes to the Financiol Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

13

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been opplied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of finoncial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepored
under the histaric cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicoble to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financlal Reporting
Standard applicable In the UK ond Repubiic of Ireland (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Acadernies Accounts
Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by DfE, the Charities Act 201t and the Companies Act 2006.

Golng concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern Is appropriate ie. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significart doubt on the obllity of the Trust {0
continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of o period of at least one year
from the date of authorisation for lssue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseecble future and there are no
material uncertointies about the Trust's ability to continue os o going concern, thus they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the finoncial statements,

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable

and the amount con be measured refiably,

Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable baosis. The balance of income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period Is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet, Where incame is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the Income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors os
deferred Income until the performance-reloted conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before

income is received, the income Is accrued.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditicnal entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of copital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and ore not deferred over the life of the asset on which

they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance-reloted conditions)

where the receipt is probabie and the amount con be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the

Trust has provided the goods or services.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1

Accounting policies (continued)

14

15

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is o legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that o transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The casts of each activity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking
each activity, Direct costs attributable to o single octivity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not ottributable to a single activity
are apportionad between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central stoff costs
are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated con the portion of the asset’s

Use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes ail expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds far its charitable purposes and includes

costs of ali fundraising ectivities events and nen-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to

the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitoble activities,
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Taxation

The Trust is considered to poss the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finonce Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of o choritable company for UK carperation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust Is potentiaily exempt from taxation In respect of Income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Part 11, chopter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargecble Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to

chaoritable purposes.
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets

1.7

1.8

1.9

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the ctd of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic fife. Where there are specific conditions ottached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities and corried forword in the Balonce Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Stetement of Financict Activities. Where tangibie
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the

unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on ali tangible fixed assets other than freehold lond and ossets under construction,
ot rotes calculoted to write off the cost of each asset on a basis over its expected vseful life, as follows:

Deprecigtion is provided on the following bases:

freehold property - 2% straight line
Long-term lecsehold property - Over the life of the lecse
Furniture and egquipment - 12.5% straight line
Office equipment - 12.5 to 25% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes In circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable ameunts are recognised as impaoirments. Impairment losses are recognised in

the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks

Stacks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for obsofete ond

slow-moving stocks.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued ot the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash ot bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the dote of acguisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

nNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Yedr Ended 31 August 2025

1,

Accounting policies (continued)

110 Liabilities

m

112

113

Liohilittes are recognised when there is an obligotion ot the Balance Sheet dote as a result of o past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required In settlement, oand the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the omount it hes received as advanced payments for the goods or services it

must provide.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trust hos an obligation at the reporting date as o result of a post event
which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation con be estimoted

reliably.

Provisions are meagsured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is moterial, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,
discounted gt the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the ligbility. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Financial instruments

The Trust enly holds basic finoncial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financiat
fiabilities of the Trust and thelr measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
megsured at amortised cost as detalled in note 16, Prepayments are not financial instruments,

Cash at barik is clossified as o basic financial instrument and is measured at foce value,

Financigl liobilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financiol instruments, ond are
meosured at amortised cost os detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not included In
the financial Instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be o financial ligbility, as
the cash settlement hos already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash
or anotner financial instrument.

Operating feases

Rentals poid under cperating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight-line

basis over the fease term.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1

Accounting policies {(continued)

114 Pensions

115

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’' Pension Scheme ("TPS") ond
the Local Government Pension Scherme ("LGPS". These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributicns are coiculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ woarking lives with the Trust in such a way thot the pension cost is o substantially fevel
percentage of current and future pensionable payroil. The contributions ore determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrenniol valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded muiti-
employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated
as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes end the contributions recognised in the period to

which they relate.

The LGPS Is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the assets ore held seporotely from those of the Trustin
seporate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme ossets are measured at foir value and lighilities are
measured on an actuariol bosis using the projected unit credit method ond discounted at o rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on o high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
ligbilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and ore updated at each Balance Sheet
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus ore the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included os part of stoff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liabllity/osset is aiso recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obfigation and interest income on
the scheme assets. calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets ot the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scherme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recegnised gains and

losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting ony of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are 1o be applied to specific copital purposes imposed by
the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Greup.

Investment income, guains and losses are allocoted to the appropricte fund.
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 3t August 2025

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historlcal experience and cther factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstonces,

Critical cccounting estimotes and assumptions:

The Trust moakes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimotes and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related cctual results. The estimetes and assumptions that have
a significont risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financia! year are discussed below.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit licbility depends on o number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using o variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disciosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liabifity. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed ot 31 March 2022 has been
used by the actuery in valuing the pensions liability ot 31 August 2025, Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of

the pension liability.

Land and Buildings Voluation
The freehold land and buildings within the accounts relates to the academy premises which were donated to the

Academy Trust on conversion, The land and buildings were volued using an independent veluer. These are being
deprecigted in gccordance with the depreciation policies set out in note 1.

LGPS surplus recognition

An entity shaoll recognise o plan surplus as ¢ defined benefit plan asset only to the extent that it is able to recover
the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. The trust are
expected to particinate in the LGPS indefinitely and therefore do not believe there is any entitlement 1o o refund.
The trust has also instructed the pension actuary to calculote on asset ceiling report to caiculate the estimated
economic benefit available as a reduction in future contributions, which shows a £Nil value. Manogement have
therefore derecognised the total pension surplus of £8999.000, which has resulted in the movement in surplus of

£4,562,000 to be derecognised in the yeor.
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guorantee)

Notes to the Financigl Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

3. Income from donations and capital grants

Donations

Capital Grants

Total 2024

In the current year, T Level grant funding amounting to £130,000¢ has been clawed back.

Restricted

Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
- - - 2138
- {36,435) (36,435) 57.968
- (36,435} (36,435) 560,106

2138 57.968 60,106
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yedr Ended 31 August 2025

DfE grants
Gereral Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE gronts

Sixth From Funding

Pupil Premium

Universal Infant Free School Meals

Rates Reclaim

Student support
Teaching schools gront
Teachers Pay Grant
Teachers Pension Grant
PE Grant

Other DfE/ESFA Grants

Other Government grants
SEN Funding
Early years fundings
Other local authority grants

Qther government income

Other income from the Trust's educational

operations

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE)

Covid Recovery Premium

Covid Tuition Fund

Funding for the Trust's charitable octivities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
- 10,751.913 10,751,913 10,322,584
- 10,296,333 10,296,333 10,079,320
- 363,402 263,402 372,972
- 27,716 37,716 50,100
- 34080 34,080 84375
- 427753 427,753 392,243
- 43,736 43,736 -
- 235719 235,719 99725
- 805,539 805,539 553,746
- 19,610 19,610 19,620
- 1,550,576 1,550,576 1,553,208
- 24566377 24,566,377 23527893
- 56225 562,281 537257
- 295 429 295,429 181,825
- 11,004 11,004 94298
- 44238 44,238 19,333
- 912,952 912,952 832,713
403,91 1,082,884 1,486,785 1,680,753
- - “ 371N
- - - 137,269
- - - 174,380
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Potteries Educational Trust

(A Compaoany Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

4, Funding for the Trust's charitable activities (continved)
403,901 26,562,213 26,966,114
Total 2024 254,123 25,961,616 26215739

26,215,739

Following review, o number of Income codes have been reclassified to align with the Annual Acceunts Return,

5. Income from other trading activities

Hire of Focilities
income from clubs
RPA Clgims

Other trading income

Total 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2025 2025 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

50,600 - 50,600 57419

- 92,836 92,836 109,578

- 8,285 8,285 963

- 195,885 195,885 603,464

50,6G0 297,006 47,606 771,424
57.419 714005 771,424

Following review, a number of income codes have been reclassified to align with the Annual Accounts Return.
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Potteries Educational Trust
{A Company Limited by Guargntee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

6, Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Investment Income 86,750 - B6,750 72,307
Pension income - 228,000 228,000 135,000
86,750 228,000 314,750 207307

Total 2024 72,307 135,000 207307

7. Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Tetal
2028 2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Educational Operations:

Direct costs 17879396 - 2461102 20,340,498 20,054,917
Allocaoted support costs 3,256,938 - 4321148 7,578,086 7967764
21136334 - 6,782,250 27,918,584 28,052,681

Total 2024 19,917,636 1,557 846 6577199 28,052,681
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Potteries Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

8. Anaiysis of expenditure by activities

Educationol Operations

Total 2024

Analysis of direct costs

Stoff costs

Educational supplies

Exomination fees

Staff development ond other staff costs
Technology costs

Educational consultancy

Other costs

Recruitment and other staff expenses

20,340,498

Activities
undertaken Support Totai Total
directiy costs funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£ £ £ E
20,340,498 7,578,088 27,918,584 28,052,681
20,054.917 7.997.764 28,052,681
Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024
£ £
17,879,396 16,511,362
167,408 252,579
556,81% 528,956
65,941 74,296
170,763 169,462
172,775 174,543
1,316,681 2,327,894
10,715 15,825
20,0547
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

8.

Analysis of expenditure by activities {continuved)

Analysis of support costs

toff costs
Depreciation
Catering
Staff training and development
Cansultancy
Insurance
Other support costs
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Administration expenses
Building maintenonce
Cleaning and caretoking
Loan interest
Hates
Home to school transport
Energy costs
Legal ond professional
Transport costs
Pension costs
Other premises costs

Governance costs

Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024
£ £
3,256,938 3,406,274
1,536,971 1,518,504
470,413 494 651
37,637 65,633
31,517 24,737
93,372 83,866
273,780 283,448
- 542
147,553 182,094
254,095 226,233
325,719 294,682
2,009 -
29,210 82,646
3,917 6,043
608,273 869,042
127,247 126,867
68,983 69,714
16,020 12,698
245,167 229110
49,265 19,980
7,578,086 7,997,764
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Potteries Educationa! Trust
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5. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreclation of tangible fixed assets

Fees paid to auditors for:

- qudit

- other services

10.  staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

wages and salaries
Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency staff costs

2025 2024
£ £
92,990 25192
1,536,969 15191
20,500 20,500
2,285 2,295
2025 2024
£ £
15,349,773 14,722,720
1,780,098 1,544,092
3,772,021 3,405,813
20,901,892 19,672,625
234,442 245,01
21,136,334 19,917,656
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10.

Stoff (continued)
b. Staff numbers

The average nurber of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

2025 2024

No. No.

Tecchers 197 160
Administraticn and support 2n 205
Management 19 20
427 415

¢. Higher paid staff

The number of employeas whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WaSs!
2025
No,
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 20
10

in the band £70,001 - £80,000
In the band £80,001 - £90,060 2
in the band £30,001 - £100,000
In the band £100,001 - £110,000
in the band £110.001 - £12¢,000 2
In the band £130,001 - £140,000

d. Key management personnel

2024
No.

L7 A e T+ =]

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed
on page 1. The total amount of key management persennel benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer natlonal insurance contributions) received by key management persannel for their services to the

Trust was £978,295 (2024 - £783,416).
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1. Central services

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Educational support

. Trust CPD

. Financiol Management

. Audit Services

. Financiol Software

. Payroll

. Humon Resources

. Employee Assitance Progromme
. Governance Services

. Dato Protection Officer Services
. Estates

. ICT Network Services

. Date Monagement

The Trust charges for these services on the foliowing basls:

The Trust charges for these services based on 3.8% GAG and Pension income

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

City of Stoke-On-Trent Sixth Form College
Biddulph High Schoot
Moorside High School

werrington Primary School

Total

2025 2024

£ £
400,875 334,056
194,663 165,773
192,053 168,082
76,888 66,251
864,479 734,162
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12.

13

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remunerction or has received other benefits from an employment with the
Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees oniy receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of principal and stoff members under their controcts of employment. The value of
Trustees' remunerction and cther benefits was as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

H McLochlan (appointed CEOC on 1 January 2024) Remuneration 135,000 - 80,600 -
140,000 85,000

Pension contributicns paid 35,000 - 20000-

40,000 25,000

During the year ended 31 August 2025, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2024 - £NIL).

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for £ducation’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an olternative 1o
insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from
claims arising fram negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, end provides cover
up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overofl cost
of the RPA scheme membership.
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Potteries Educational Trust
(A Compuny Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

15.  Stocks

First Bus Tickets

1.  Debtors

Due within one year
Trade debtors

Other debtors

VAT recovercble

Prepayments and accrued Income

17.  Current asset investments

Long term interest accounts

2025 2024

£ £
27,007 36,824
2025 2024

£ £
58,238 157,754
159,141 136,024
146,603 193193
443,701 523,720
807,683 990,691
2025 2024

£ £
2,141,045 2,070,390
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18.

19.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2025 2024

£ £

Other loans 27,825 28,835
Trude creditors 401,61 533.666
Other taxation and social security 389,636 330,301
Other creditors 487,550 501171
Accruals and deferred income 610,196 786,038

1,916,816 2.180,0M

2025 2024
£ £
Deferred income at 1 September 512,178 762111
Resaources deferred during the year 450,307 512,178
Amounts relecsed from previous periods (512,178) (762110

450,307 212,178

£442 215 (2024: £512,178) relates to DFE grants in advance and funds received in relation to trips.

Included in other loans are solix and CIF loans totalling £27,823 which are interest free loans repoyable in fixed
instaltments over 8-10 years starting January 2019.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2025 2024
£ £

Other loans 156,077 192,839

Included in other loans are salix and CIF foans totelling £156,077 which are interest free loans repayable in fixed
instailments over 8-10 years storting January 2019.
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20. Provisions

Enhanced
pensions
£

162,105
1,665

At 1 Septermber 2024

Amounts accrued

163,770

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who olready left the Trust's employment and
commitments for reorganisation costs from which the trust cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet
date. The provision has been recalculoted in accardance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.
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For the Year Ended 31 Avgust 2025

21 Statement of funds

Balance at 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 3
2024 income  Expenditure in/out {Losses) August 2028
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,401,465 541,251 (401,262} (37,755) - 1,503,699
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) (214,147) 10,751,913 (10,647,413) 244,439 . 134,792
Sixth Form
Funding 746,718 10,296,333  (9,788,300) (562,464) - 692,287
Pupit Premium - 363,402 (363,402) - - -
Universal infant
free school
meais - 37,716 {37,716) - - -
Rates Reciaim - 34,080 (34,080} - - -
Teachers Pay
Grant - 235,719 {235,719) . - -
Teachers Pension
Grant - 805,539 (805,539) - . -
Cther DfE Grants - 2,040,675 (2,040,675) - - -
QOther
Government
Grant - 912,952 (912,952} - - -
Other
income/Donatio
ns - 1,380,890 (1,380,820) - - -
Enhanced
Pension
Provision (162,105) - (1,665) - - {163,770)
Pension reserve . 228,000 268,000 - (496,000} -
270,466 27,087,219 (25,980,351) (318,025) (496,000) 663,309
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21,

Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed
asset funds

DOfE Grants 5,945,257 (36,435) (753,859) 3,508,122 - B,463,085
Transferred on
conversion 48,458,866 - {783,112) {2,952,342) - 44,723,412
54,404,123 {36,435) (1,536,971 355,780 - 53,186,497
Total Restricted
funds 54,774,580 27,050,784  (27,517,322) 37,755 (496,000) 53,849,806
Total funds 56,176,054 27,592,035 (27,918,584) - (496,000) 55,353,505

s AL ————————. g A
——— e

marmrerrrrrrrTr——— B A T ——————————————
e ———
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21.

Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted General Funds
This fund represants those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the

Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted Genercl Funds
This fund represents grants received for the Trust's operational activities and development.

Pension Reserve
This fund represents the Trust's shore of the pension liability arising on the LGPS pension fund,

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund
This fund relates to grant funding received by the DfE to carry out works of a capital noture and also the

donation of leasehold lond, buildings and plouing fields from the local authority on a 125 yecr lease and a small
amount of capital expenditure from GAG and other sources of income.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust wos not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2025,
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21

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information In respect of the preceding year is as foliows:

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds -
all funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annuacl
Grant (GAG)

Sixth Form
Funding

Pupil Premium

Universal infant
free school
meals

Rates Reclaim

Teachers Pay
Grant

Teachers Pension
Grant

Other DfE Grants

Other
Government
Grant

Covid Recovery

Covid Tuitton
Fund

COther

Income/Donatio

ns

E£nhanced
Pension reserve

Pension reserve

Bolance at Balonce at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out (Lesses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,519,444 383,849 (247.984) (253,844) - 1,401,465
173,461 10,327,770 (10,343,122) (372,256) - (214,147)
541,851 10,466,377 {10,313,790) 52,280 - 746,718
- 372974 (372.974) - - -
- 50,100 (50,100) - - -
- 84,375 (84,575) - - .
- 99,725 (99,725 - - -
- 553.746 (553,746) - . .
- 1572825 (1,572,825) - - -
- 832,713 (832,713} - - -
- m 37411 - - -
- 137,269 (137,269) - - -
- 2,142,774 (2142.7714) - - -
(162,436) “ 331 - - (162,105)
(359,000) 135,000 255,000 - (31.000) -
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21, Statement of funds (continued)

Balance ot Balance ot
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure In/out (Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
153,876 26,812,759 (26,285,193} (519,976 (31,000 370,466
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE Grants 6,420,359 57,968 (1,106,890} 573,820 - 5945257
Transferred on
CONVEersicn 48,871,480 - (412,614) - - 48,458 866
55,291,839 57,968 (1,519,504) 573,820 - 54,404,123
Total Restricted
funds 55,485,715 26,870,727 (27,804,697) 253844 (31,000 54,774,589
Total funds 57005159 27,254,576 (28,052,681 - (31.000) 56,176,054
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21,

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds anclysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated as follows:

2025 2024
£ £
City of Stoke-on-Trent Sixth Form College 1,359,070 1372,454
Biddulgh High School (468,652) (487,251)
Moorside High School 175,160 50,298
Werrington Primary School 802,272 632,675
Central 299,158 203,755
Total before fixed asset funds ond pension reserve 2,167,008 1,771,931
Restricted fixed asset fund 53,186,497 54,404,123
Total 55,353,505 56,176,054
The following acaderny is carrying a net deficit on its portion of the funds os follows:
Deficit
£
(468,652)

Biddulph High School

The Trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

The Trust Central Services tearm continues to work in conjunction with leaders from Bidduiph High Schoal on o
seven-year financial recovery plon through to the 2030-31 year when it is expected the school will have returned
10 ¢ cumvulative surplus position. This also tokes into consideration the revisions needed for the high inflationary
factors linked to stoff pay, energy costs and other non-staffing expenditure areas. All parties continue to be fully

invested in the recovery process.
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21,

Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year wos as follows:

City of Stoke-on-
Trent Sixth Form
Coliege

Biddulph High
School

Moorside High
School

werrington
Primary School

Central

Trust

Teaching and
educational Other

Other costs

Unailocated amouns of £268,000 (2024: £255,000) relates to LGPS pension movements.

support staff support stoff  Educational excluding Total Total
costs costs supplies depreciation 2025 2024

£ £ £ £ £ £

7422563 1347,028 39439 2,252,035 11,061,065 10,935,806
4,196,413 835,636 53,219 795,661 5,880,929 5749475
3,862,884 721563 48 806 1134,076 5,767,529 5,628,636
1,908,441 226,383 25,694 467,287 2,627,805 2,380,906
489,095 394,528 250 428812 1,312,485 2,093,353
17,879,396 3,524,938 167.408 5,077,871 26,649,613 26,788,176
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22,

Analysis of net assets between funds

Anaiysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2025 2025 2025 2025

£ £ £ £

Tongible fixed assets - - 53,084,797 53,084,797
Current ossets 1,503,699 2899972 101,700 4,505,371
Creditors due within one year “ (1,916,816) - (1,916,816)
Creditors due in more than one year - (156,077} - (156,077}
Provisions for fiabilities and charges - (163,770) - (163,770}
Total 1,503,699 663,309 53,186,497 55,353,505

Analysls of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - 54,318,876 54,318,876
Current assets 1,570,344 2,736,542 85,247 4392133
Creditors due within one year (46,326) (2.133,685) - (2,180,011)
Creditors due th more than one year (122,55%) {70,286} - (192,839)
Pravisions for liobilities and chorges - {162,105} - {162.105)
1,401,465 370,466 54,404,123 56,176,054

Totai

|
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23.

24,

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (Gs per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:
Depreciction
Capita! gronts from DFE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions paycble

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

Decrease in creditors

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Loss on Disposal

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating octivities

Cash flows from fingncing activities

Cosh inflows from new borrowing

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash (used in}/provided by financing activities

2025 2024
£ £
(326,549) (798,105)
1,536,969 1,519,111
36,435 (57,968)
(86,750) (72307
(268,000) (255,000)
(228,000) (135.000)
9,817 16,146
155,578 (108.069)
(392,183) (767.242)
1,665 (331)
- 542
438,982 (658,223)
2025 2024
£ £
. 136,170
(37,774) (27.205)
(37,774) 108,965
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25,

26.

27.

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tongible fixed assets
Purchase of investments

Capital grants from DIE Group

Net cash vsed in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Anolusis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

2025 2024

£ £

86,750 72307

(302,890} (1,007,947)

{70,655) (162,841)

120,995 479,944

(165,800} (618,637}

2025 2024

£ £

1,529,636 1,294,228

1,529,636 1,294,228

At

September Other non- At 31 August
2024 Cash fiows cash changes 2025

£ £ £ £
1,294,228 235,408 . 1,529,636
{28,835) 37,774 (36,762} (27,823)
{192,839) - 36,762 (156,077}
1,072,554 273,182 - 1,345,736

b
R s

Page 69



Potteries Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

28,

Pension commitments

The Trust's employees helong to two principal penslon schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme Englond and
Wales (TPS) for academic ond related staff; and the Local Government Pensicn Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching
staff, which is managed by Staffordshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuotion of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 end of the LGPS 31 March
2022

Contributions amounting to £440,086 were paycble to the schemes at 31 August 2025 (2024 - £423,249) and are
Inciuded within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Tecchers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is eutomatic for full-time teachers In academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enralment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by

public funds provided by Porliorment.
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normel actuarial principles, conducts o formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordonce with the Public Service Pensions (valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review spacifies the level of future contributions,

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actucrial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by
HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% cbove the rate of CPl The key elements of the

valugtion outcome ore:
» Emplayer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensicnable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). This
is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change In

member benefits is needed.
e Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently In payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimoted future contributions
fogether with the notional investments held ot the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next voluation resuit is due to be
implernented from T April 2027.
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year omounted to £2,956,481 (2024 - £2,521,386).

A copy of the valuation report ond supporting documeniation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https//www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/tecchers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Trust is
unable to identify its share of the underlying ossets and liobifities of the plan. Accordingly, the Trust has taken
advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were Q
defined contribution scheme. The Trust hos set out above the information available on the scheme.

Loca! Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is o funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribytion made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was £1,376,000 (2024 - £1,547,000), of
which employer's contributions totclled £1,099,000 (2024 - £1,248,000) and employees' contributions totalled
£277,000 (2024 - £299,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 26.2 per cent for employers and
5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has ogreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme licbilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarentee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education
reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

% %

Rate of increase In safories 3.2 335
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.7 265
Discount rate for scheme liobilities €.05 5
27 2.65

Inflation assumption (CP1H

The current mortality assumptions Include sufficient allowance for future Improvements In mortality rates. The
assumed life expectotions on retirement age 65 are:
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

Retiring taday
Males

Fernales

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rote +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortelity assumgption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPlrate -0.1%

Safary increase +0.1%

Sclory increase -0.1%

2025 2024
Yedrs Yeaqrs
18.5-21.6 18.3-214
23.7-24.2 23.6-24.2
19.9-20.9 19.7-206
24.7-25.2 247-252
2025 2024
£000 £000
(334,000) (402,000)
334,000 402,000
620,000 708,000
(620,000) (708,000)
328,000 392,000
(328,000) (392,000)
16,000 19.000
(16,000) (19,000)
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28.  Pension commitments (continved)
Share of scheme ossets

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Corporate bonds
Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,616,000 (2024 - £2,601,000).

The emounts recognised in the Statement of Financiol Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Finoncial Activities

Changes in the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost

£mployee contributions
Actuarial gains

Benefits paid

At 31 August

At 31 August

At 31 August

2025 2024
£ £
15,675,000 14,164,000
6,613,000 5975000
1,714,000  1549,000
490,000 443,000
24,492,000 22,131,000
2025 2024
£ £
(831,000)  (993,000)
1,127,000 997,000
(899,000)  (B62,000)
(603,000)  (85B,000)
2025 2024
£ £
17,694,000 16,213,000
831,000 993,000
899,000 862,000
277,000 299,000
(3,696,000) (131,000)
(512,000)  (542,000)
15,493,000  17.694,000
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28,

29.

30.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2025 2624
£ £

At 1September 17,694,000 15,854,060

Interest income 1,127,000 997,000
Actuariat gains 370,000 1,458,000
Employer contributions 1,099,000 1,248,600

277,000 299,000

Employee contributions
(512,000) (542,000)

(4,562,000) (1,620,000}

Benefits paid
Pension surplus not recognised

At 31 August 15,493,000 17,694,000

As ot 31 August 2025, the Trust had derecognised pensicn assets totalling £8,999.000,

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2025 the Trust had commitrments to make future minimum lease pagments under non-cancelicble
operating leases as follows:

As restated

2025 2024

£ £

Not lgter than 1 year 88,820 89,546
44 707 131442

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

133,527 220988

The prior yecr has been restoted to reflect an operoting lease that was signed prior to 31 August 2024 but
poyments did not commence untll 1 September 2024,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitoble compony undertokes 1o contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is o member, or within one year ofter he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and ligbilities contracted before he/she ceases 1o be a

member.
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31 Related porty transactions

Owing ta the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Boord of Trustees being draown from local public
and private sector organisations, transactions maoy toke place with orgenisations in which the trustees have an
interest. Al transoctions invelving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
Accdemy Trust Handbook, including notifying the BfE of all tronsactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and
obtaining their approvo! where required, and with the Trust's financial regulations and normai procurement

procedures relating 1o connected and reloted party tronsactions.

No related party transactions, other than trustees’ remuneration and expenses are glready disclosed in note 12,

have occured during the year,

32.  Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for DfE. in the financial year ended 3t August
2025 the trust received £422524 and disbursed £409.852 from the fund. An amount of £122,494 is included in
other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is being carried forward for distribution in 2025/26.
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